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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, &

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of
the esteemed members of the Board to the Second (2") Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway
Limited (IrconASEL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 31t March,
2023, are already with you and with your kind permission, | take
them as read. | would like to express my sincere gratitude for
making it convenient for attending the AGM.

Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”) has been awarded the work of construction of Eight Lane
access-controlled Expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli Section-SPUR of
Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (‘the Project’) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity
Mode (HAM) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in
Letter of Award issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned
subsidiary and a Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconASEL.

IrconASEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 27" January, 2022 and the
concession period of the project comprises of construction period 548 days from the appointed
date (10" November 2022) and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial
Operation Date (COD).

As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,124.00 crore plus GST (excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.686.37 crore & equity of Rs.171.59
crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the term loan of Rs.686.37
crore. As on date, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has disbursed the term loan of Rs.32.70 crore and
total equity of Rs.55.88 crore has been infused by Ircon international Limited.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including O&M
for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1060.23 crore plus applicable GST. Presently, the
construction activities have started from the appointed date of 10" November 2022 and the
works are progressing on the available front.

Compliances and Disclosures

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. As per Office Memorandum
dated 10" July 2014 and 11" July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises, CPSEs
constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your
company.
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Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24,
in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07"
November, 2022 and 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

Acknowledgements

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors of
the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. | express my
deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, |
would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous support.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited

Sd/-

Parag Verma
Chairman
DIN: 05272169
Date:04.08.2023

Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 02" Annual Report of Ircon
Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL) together with the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended on 31¢
March, 2023.

. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S
AFFAIRS:

Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (IrconASEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) was incorporated on 23 December, 2021 as a Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object to carry the business of Construction of Eight
Lane access-controlled Expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli Section-
SPUR of Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (‘the Project’) in the State of Maharashtra on
Hybrid Annuity Mode (HAM) under Bharatmala Pariyojana (Phase lIl-Package XIV), in
accordance with the Concession Agreement with National Highway Authority of India
(NHAI).

IrconASEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 27" January, 2022 and
the concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 548 days from the
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.

As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,124.00 crore plus GST(excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.686.37 crore & equity of
Rs.171.59 crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the term loan of
Rs.686.37 crore. During the financial year, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has disbursed the term
loan of Rs.30.70 crore and total equity of Rs.51.49 crore has been infused by Ircon
international Limited.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1060.23 crore plus applicable GST. Presently, the
construction activities have started from the appointed date of 10" November 2022 and the
works are progressing on the available front.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial
Year 2022-23 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

D'Lrectors'Rzport
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Financial performance indicators as on 315 March 2023:

(Rs. in lakh)
Sl. For the Year For the period
No: Particulars Ended from
31.03.2023 23.12.2021 to
31.03.2022
1. Equity Share Capital 5.00 5.00
o) Other Equity (includes Reserves and 5.175.33 (0.06)
Surplus)
3. Net Worth 5,180.33 4.94
4 BorrO\_/v_ings (including current 3,070.00 i
maturities)
5. Total Assets and Liabilities 12,773.12 10.74
6. Revenue from Operations 6,542.20 1.74
7. Other Income 42.43 -
8. Total Income (7) + (8) 6,584.63 1.74
9. Profit Before Tax 42.06 -
10. | Profit After Tax 31.39 (0.06)
Earnings Per Equity Share (on face
1. value of Rs.10/- per share)
(i) Basic 62.78 (0.12)
(i)  Diluted 62.78 (0.12)

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head “Other Equity” in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.31.33
Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 315t March 2023.

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company of Rs.5 Lakh comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) hold 100% of the paid-up share capital of IrconASEL.
During the financial year ended on 315t March, 2023, there was no change in the share
capital of your Company, and Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100%
paid-up share capital of IrconASEL.

After closure of the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has increased its Authorized
Share Capital from Rs.5 lakh to Rs.17.50 crore and Paid-up Share Capital from Rs.5 lakh to
4.34 crore.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment
Rules, 2019 dated 22" January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary
(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.
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5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.8212.01 lakh
for the financial year ended 315! March 2023.

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the year under review, there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of
the Company.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR
2022-23

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by
the holding company (IRCON).

As on 31t March, 2023, total number of Director is Four including Chairman, nominated by
IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:

Category, Name & Designation Date of Appointment or Change in

designation (during the year, if any)
Mr. Parag Verma, Chairman 05272169 Re-designated as Chairman on
10.10.2022
Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma 08556821 Appointed as Additional Part-time
Director on 10.10.2022
Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 -

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 -

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, ceased to be the
Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the
IRCON w.e.f. 10" October 2022. The Board placed on record its appreciation for valuable
contribution, guidance and support given by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal.

IRCON had re-designated Mr. Parag Verma, Director (Works), IRCON, as Chairman in
IrconASEL w.e.f. 10" October 2022.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director, was nominated by IRCON as Additional Part-time
Director of the Company w.e.f. 10" October 2022, who hold office upto the date of the
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature for
appointment as Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
His appointment as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of the AGM.
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors
of the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company. Mr. Parag Verma, Mr. B. Mugunthan and Mr. Masood Ahmad being the First
Directors of the Company appointed on the same date i.e. 23 December, 2021 and Mr.
Parag Verma shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his
reappointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint
any Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the period under review, the Board met six (6) times on 17.05.2022, 22.07.2022,
04.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 03.11.2022 and 31.01.2023. The interval between the two Board
Meetings were within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The
attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

17.05.2022 4 4
22.07.2022 4 4
04.08.2022 4 3
25.08.2022 4 3
03.11.2022 4 4
31.01.2023 4 4

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held
during the period under review and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting
(AGM):

Name of Directors Meeting Date Total No. of % of
Board Board Attenda
Meeting Meetings nce
entitted  attended

to during FY

attend 2022-23

during

FY

2022-23

03.11.2022
31.01.2023

AN [ N
AN [ N
o | O
SR
w0~
oo
N~ | N
— | N
vV

| 04.08.2022
\| 25.08.2022

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal
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Mr. Parag Verma VI Y |* | Y |Y]|Y] Yes 6 5 83.33
Mr. Devendra Kumar - |- |- |- | Y| Y| NA. 2 2 100

Sharma

Mr. B. Mugunthan YIYIvYIvYIvY|Y] No 6 6 100

Mr. Masood Ahmad Y| v v | *|¥Y|Y ]| Yes 6 5 83.33

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05" July, 2017 exempted an
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconASEL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON,
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s Office Memorandum (OM)
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11" July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are
not applicable on IrconASEL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31%t March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2023 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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DIRECTOR’'S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT'S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT):

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and
need no further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any
clarification/explanation.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s Rajendra K Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory
Auditors, for the Financial Year 2022-23 vide CAG letter No./CA.V/ICOY/
DELHI,IRASEL(1)/570 dated 31%t August, 2022. They have confirmed by way of a written
consent and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year
2022-23 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with
Non-Review Certificate received from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the
financial year 2022-23.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company during
financial year 2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary is not applicable to the
Company during the financial year 2022-23.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under
review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the financial year 2022-23, the related party transactions with the holding company,
IRCON were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved
in terms of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form
AOC-2 are enclosed to this report as Annexure —A.

10
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, except as
mentioned in this Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

Conservation of enerqy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period
under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to
the business of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated 05" June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIlI.

IrconASEL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the
Directors' Report.

11
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under
review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its
members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review.

COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERNCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crore and
all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions by the CPSEs. The Company was incorporated on December 23" December,
2021 and has started its operations in the second half of the FY 2022-23 upon declaration
of appointed date by NHAI. Registration on TReDS Platform will be done during the FY
2023-24.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable

12
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on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under
POSH Act.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to
sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a
vigil mechanism are not applicable to Company during the financial year 2022-23.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during
the financial year 2022-23, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied
during the financial year 2022-23.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, sub-
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to
Directors of Government Company.

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited, all part-time Directors of the Company are nominated by the holding company,
IRCON. The evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per
pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence,
performance evaluation of Directors is not applicable on your company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary
companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the
base year.

13
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Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON.

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the FY 2023-24, in line with the MOU Guidelines
and IRCON vide its letter dated 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the
Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks,
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and
look forward to their continued support in the future.

We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all
levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and
sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during
the period under report. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work,
solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited

Sd/-
Parag Verma
Chairman
DIN: 05272169
Date:04.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE -A

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto during the period from 015t April, 2022 to 31% March, 2023

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Duration  of | Salient terms of Date(s) of
the contracts | the Contracts or approval Amount
| | Nature of contracts or | or Arrangements or by the paid as
' | arrangements or transactions arrangements | Transactions y . advances,
NO . ; Board, if . )
or including the any: if any:
transactions | value, if any y:
EPC Agreement Agreement dated
(For Appointing Ircon International 02  September,
Limited as EPC Contractor for 2022.
construction, maintenance and
management of Eight lane access ﬁ:‘eB d:g;?oi]:?erg The Contract has Mobilization
controlled Expressway from Km date and 5 been awarded to| 227 July, |Advance of
3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to IRCON for a 2022 Rs.50
X ) year O&M ; .
Akloli Section — Spur of Vadodara Period consideration  of crore.
Mumbai Expressway) in the State Rs.1,060.23 crore
of Maharashtra on EPC mode Plus GST.
under Bharatmala Pariyojna
(Phase Il - Package XIV).
Lease Agreement
th
Lease Agreement One Year ﬁéi?ﬁ;erd onzggz 24t NIL (As on
| (To take on lease the Office (01.02.2022 to for r)(/e’nt @ December, Date)
Premises of IRCON) 31.03.2023) Rs.21,236/- p.m. 2021
plus GST.

Note:

1. Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e.
Chief Operating Officer (COO) to IrconASEL and the salary, benefits (like PF, GIS, Society
deduction, related payments, etc.) and other miscellaneous payment in nature of travelling /
ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees as per IRCON'’s policy are reimbursed on
actual cost basis.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited

Sd/-
Parag Verma
Chairman
DIN: 05272169
Date:04.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IRCON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of IRCON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the “company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2023. the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income). the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended 31% March 2023, and the notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.2015, as amended.
(“Ind AS”) und other accounting prineiples generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and loss and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended 31% March 2023,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report,
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the linancial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have [ulfllled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the CAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements af the current financial year.
These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company s
annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and These Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Finaneial
Statements :

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maiters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act. 2013 (*'the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fuir view of the financial position. financial
performance. changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,a8 amended from tine to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Fivaucial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finanecial statements
as a whole are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) ol
the Companies Act. 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, It we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality ts the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS [inancial smatements that,
individually or in aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope ol our
audit work and in evaluating the results of owr work; and (ii) m evaluate the effect ol any
identified misstatements in the [inancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
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the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, inextremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report)Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by
the CentralGovernment of India in terms of sub-section (11)of section 143 of the
Companies Act. 2013, we give in the Annexure A. a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those boaks.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not
applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.8.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2013,
issued by the Central Government of India.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

g Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Aet are not
applicable vide notification no, GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015. issued by the
Central Government of India.

h. With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule I'1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditorsy Ruleg, 2014 as
amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given 1o us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact on its financial position.

Based on the assessment made by the Company. there are no malerial
foreseeable losses on long-term comracts that may require any
provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred. to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The Management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediarics™).
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Intermediary shall, whether. directly or indircetly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security
or the like on behall ol the Ultimate Beneliciaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that. to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity. including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall. whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimat

Beneficiaries: and '

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of

Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any final or interim dividend during
the year and until the date of'this report, therefore, the reporting under clause
is not applicable.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature -
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with
effect from April 1. 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31. 2023.
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3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by
Compuroller and Auditor General of India, we report that:

CONTINUATION SHEET....

S.No

Directions

Auditor’s Replies

1.

Whether the company has system
in place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT  system? If wyes, the
implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside
[T system on the Integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be
stated.

Company is using SAP system to
process all the accounting
transactions. As  per the
information and explanation
provided to us, no accounting
transactions have been processed
outside the IT System.

Whether there is any
restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest ete. made by
a lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial
impact may be stated. Whether
such cases arc properly
accounted for? (In case. lender is
a Government company, then this
direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender
company).

No, Company is having no case
of any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of
waiver/wrile off of
debts/loans/interest ctc. made by
a lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay
the loan.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy
etc.) received/receivable for

specific schemes from
Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly

accounted for/utilized as per its
term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation

According to the
information and explanation
given to us and as per our
examination of records, no
funds have been
receivedireceivable for any
specific  scheme  from
Central/State  Government
or its agencies during the
financial year 2022-23.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12/05/2023

UDIN-23006154BGXRSV2941
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company does not have any
intangible assets during the year,

{b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the
year. There is a regular program of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verifications,

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence reporting
under clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(d) During the year, no assets have been revalued by the Company, hence reporting under clause
3 (i) d of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e} The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence reporting
under clause 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

il.  (a) The Company has no inventories during the reporting year. Hence. reporting under clause 3
(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time during
the year, hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted any loan
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, and any other parties, during the year. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (a),
(b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iv.  The Company has not granted loan, made investment. and provided guarantee and security to
which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached. Hence,
reporting under Paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

v, The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public and therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed
there under, are not applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.  The Company is not required to maintain cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
vi.  Inrespect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State¢ Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax.
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. There
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employces’ State Insurance. Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, dutyof Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records
of the Company, there is no amount payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31,
2023 on account of any disputes.

vili.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

ix, (&) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year
under audit.

(b} The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

(¢) The Company has wtilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes
for which they were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting under clause
3 (ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 March, 2023 and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (¢) of the Order is
not applicable.

(f The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 March, 2023 and hence, reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable,

% (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) Noreport under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date
of this report).

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xif) (a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

xiii. . In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards,
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xiv.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not require to have
an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting
under clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

xv.  Inouropinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under F.Icction 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence. reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b), (¢) and (d) of the Order
is not applicable.

wii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

will. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. Onthe basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit reportindicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however. state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

A% The Company has not exceeded the limits prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 since its incorporation and hence, the Company is not required to transfer to a fund specified
in schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the order is
not applicable for the year. -

xxi.  The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and therefore,
company has not prepared consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For Rajendra K Goel & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001457N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12/05/2023
UDIN: 230061 54BGXRSV2941
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Annexure B” to the Independent Aunditors’ Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial
Statements of Ircon Alkloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited for the year ended 31* March, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON AKLOLI-
SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3 1 March
2023,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accardance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
- if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls systemn over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

- principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company:, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 1o the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as al March 31, 2023, “based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India™,

For Rajendra K Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001457N

Membership No: 0061

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12/05/2023
UDIN: 23006134BGXRSV294 1
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(iw} Bunk balances other sthan cash and cash cquivalents - -
|¥) Loans = &
{vi) Cibicr cairrent linanzal nsicts | 2.100.89 174
(e} Current Tax Aszeis (Met] & 0.4 -
(i) Oiber current asse1s ] 542508 275
Total current asseis 11,9776 B8
TOTAL ASRETS II.TT!,I_J IE’:‘
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{2) Esnuity share cagital & 500 500
(b)) Other equity o s (006}
Toml equiry 5,180.33 4.9:4
Liusbillties
Non-current linbilities
[a) Firancial linbilities i
(1} Borrowings 104 3.770,00 -
(i) Leasa Hobilities = -
{iii} Trade pavables
- batal sutstanding dies of micto sntsprizes and small colerprisss o -
+atul eutstanding dues of erediiors ather than of micro evterprises ond small enterprises - -
(iv] Cther Giang il lnibites S y
(b) Praviswons - -
() Cihes nun-current |abilities - -
Toial non=current lisbilitles 3.070.00
Current linhilities
(8) Firancial linhilities 11
{1} Bocrowings - a
(1) Lease laabilities - -
(i} Trde payabbes 1L
- total outstanding dises of miced enterprises and small satermeises 4,52 -
- toial puistanding duss ef creditors et than of mives entesprises and small enierprises 431147 035
{iv) Other Noancisl liabilites 112 12,04 5.44
(b} Ciither crerrent Bibiliics 12 9376 -
(e) Provisions - -
[} Cuarrer T liabiling (het) 13 - 0.11
Tofal caveent liabilities 452179 A.80
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 177312 lﬂ-ﬁ
Simnificant accountinge poliches 1
The sceompanyiig nades are an [niegal part of the Minavcial siatomenis. 1indl

As per oair report of even date attachod
For Rajendra K Goel & (o,

Charte red Ageounients
ICAI Firm Registrution Mo, . q
r= ol
e
. mde'Mmud
niex {Blirecios)

o

For and o belalf of the Board of Direciors

Charlorad §o
F\fccountanis/O

Dage : Moy 12, 2023

fﬂm:-hﬂlilﬂljﬂ.‘a
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
CIN:-U45309DL2021GOI391629

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2023
(AN amounis in Indion Rupees Lakhs wiless atheryise stated)

3 For the year ended Ferlny eyl oed
Particulars Note 315t March 2023 December 2021 i
315t March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 14 6,542,270 |74
Other income 13 42,43 -
Total Incomie (A) 6.584.63 1.74
Expenscs
Project Expenses 16 646502 -
Employee benefits cxpenses 17 2343 -
Finance costs 18 247 -
Depreciation, pmortisation and impairment 19 a7 -
Onther expenscs 0 31.58 1.74
Totnl expenses (B 6.542.57 1.74
Profitf{Loss) before tax (A-B) 42.06 i
Tax expense 3
Current tax 10,64 011
Dieferred 1ax (net) 003 {0.05)
Tatal tax expense 10.67 0.06
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1139 (0.06)
Other comprehensive income/{Toss)
A) Tterms that will not be reclassified te profit or loss - -
Income 1ax relating to Jtems that will nat be reclassified 1o profit or loss - -
B liems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to Nems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Oiher comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year (net of tax) - -
Total Comprehensive incomef{loss) for the vear 13 (0.06)
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 25
Basic 62.78 (0.12)
Diluted 62.78 (0.12)
Significant necounting policics 1
The aceompanying notes are an imegral part of the financizl siatements, 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached
For Rajendra K Goel & Ca.
Chartered Accountants

TC AT Firm Registration Mo, -001457TH

ICAT Membership No.: 06154

R o5

Q‘f~ ,—\\
'*/;'-IL'JHErcd )

et i:'f:\'-‘\!lrli..nrlts

Flace : Mew Delli
Date : May 12,2023

28

Wasoad mad

o -ﬂ%dSSSEI}

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

] N

E. Mugunthan
(D { Director)
{DIN:--08517013)




Tream AMali-Shirsad Kxpressway Limited
CIN--U45309D L2002 1GOLI9 1629

Statement of changes in ¢quity for the year ended 315t Murch, 2023
(AN mmowrs iy Indfar Repeey Labhs walesy otherwise sratod)

() Equity Share Capital
For ihe vear ended 31 Murch 2023

Particulars Amount
Balanceas at 1 April 2022 500
Changes in equity share eopital due lo prior perind ermrs .
Restated balances as at | April 2022 5.00
Changes in equity share capilal domng the vear =
Balances os at 31 March 2023 5.00
For the perind ended 31 March 2022
FParticulars Amount
Balance as at 23 December 2021 -
Changes in eguity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balanees as ot 23 Docember 2021 -
Changes in equity share eopital during the period 5.00
Balances as 3t 31 March 2022 3.00
(b} Qitber Equity

For ihe year ended 31 Muorch 2023
Particulars Reserves & Surplus Cther Total

Camprohoneive

Retained Enrninps|  Quasi Equily Income

Balanee as a1 1 April, 2022 {0.06), - " {06}
Chanaes in aceounting palicy or prior period errors - - E -
Restated balance as al 1 April, 2022 {.06) = i LY
Total profit for the year 31.39 - - 3139
Oiher compreliensive income for the year - - - .
Tolal comprehensive income {or the year 3139 - - 31349
Receipt of Quasi-Equity (Intercst free loan) frem Holding Company - 5,144.80 5.144.00
Balance as ot 31 March, 2023 333 5,144.00 - 517533
For the period 23 December 2021 to 31 March 2022
Partlculars Reserves & Surplos Other Total

Comprehensive

Retaloed Eavalngs]  Quasl Equity Income

Balance as at 23 Decemlier, 2021 - - -
Changes in accounling policy er prior perod ermons - ” -
Restated balance as 2t 23 December, 2021 = = H .
Ttal profiz for the period (0.06) B - {0.086)
Other cemprehensive income for the perind - - - -
Total eomprehensive income for the period {0.06) - ¥ {0.06)
Balance as af 31 March, 2022 {06y - - {.06)
Sigmifleant accounting policics I
The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of the financizl ststements, 1o di

As per our report ofoven dete ainched
For Rajendra K Goel & Co.
Charicred Accounianis

IC Al Firm Registration Mo, :

G
B{:Dun!n:\[ﬁ)_{)

Place : New Delhi
Daie May 12,2023

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

/ Q

Qe
az00d Alimad B. Muguithas
(Rivectac) {Drirsctor)
(DIN-09008553) (DIN:-08517013)
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Ireon Aklefl-Shirsad Exporessway Limited
CIMN:-U45309 DL GO39 629

Btatement of Cash Flews for the yeor coded 3151 March 2023
{All amolnts [n Indisn Rupess Lakls unless oiberviie staicd)

Particulars Far the year ended 31st | For the Perdod 23rd
Muarch 2023 December 2071 1o st
Muorch 2012
Cash Mow from aperating aetivitos
Profit before tax 43 06 =
Adjustmenty for:
Pepreciatiun expomss no7 -
Inrerest Ex penses 228
Otperating profit hefore warking capital chamges 4441 =
Movemenis in working capitol:
[ocrease [ decreuse] in other cusrent linbilicy 19376 -
Inerease/[detrease] i Trade Payables aud other cumen| financial lisbilities 432334 5.69
Drecrepse/fincreasel in Trade Recernbles and corramt financinl assets (r3LTE) {1.74)
Drecreasel(uscrease) in other currem and non-clament assets {5,420,70) {5,061
(5,245.36) {L.11)
Cash geierated from Oporation (F.200,95) (Lin)
Ineome Tax (prid)irefandecd (1106 -
Met cash Mow fromifused ind operating sctivities (A] (212005 {L11)
Cash Mlows from investing activities
Purchase of Propesty, plant and eguiprasit [T -
Mot cash flove from/{used in} investing activities (1) {41 -
Caah Now from financing nctivities
Proceeds from foesh issue of shars capiiz) - 5K}
Proceeds From noa cutrent borrmwings 107000 :
Proceeds [ram Recoipl of Quasi Equity 5, 144.00
Taiterest paid 134y -
Net cash (Tow fromy{used in) in financing nctivities (i) & 2266 S00
Mut inerempi(doerease) in cash snd cash cquivalents (A + B HD) 24 380
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vewr 359 F
Cial ancl cash equivalents at the end of the vear 413 387

Mates:

L. The Statement. of Cash flows has been prepored under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 Ststoment of Cash Flow® netified weader the Companies {Tndian Accounting

Standards) Bules, 20015,

2. Recouviliation of Cash and Cash Equivalenis and Comgricients af Cush and Cash Equivelents included in the abowe Siatement of Cash Flows ;

Particulocs As at 31t March 2023 | As at 3]st Morch 2022
Compooends of cash and cash coqulvilents

=Cash on hand = &

= With banks in current seconnt - 189

- With banks in cscrow sceount 4,13 -
Totad cash and el equiva 4,13 3.E9
3, Reconciliation berwesn the opeoing and closing balanees in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from finnneing aetivities
For the yesr coded 31 March 2023
Fardlculars Barrowings*
As at 1 April 2022 -
{a} Cagh Flows during e year 30700
{b) Won Cash Changes due to;

Interest accrued on borrowings (net of iderest paid) 0467
As owi 31 March 2023 3,070.67
Far Ue period frem 23 Decomber, 20210 (0 31 March 2022
Particulirs Borvowinps®

Asat 25 Decomber 2021
() Cash Flaws dusing the period
(k) Mon Cagh Chanpes due o :
Inizrest pecrued on bormowings (nel of micrest paid)

Asat 31 March 2022

* Imcludes inierest accruced on non-purrem bomowings, refer MNote 11.2,

As por our repoct of cven date aftaclicd
For Rajondra K Goel & Cn.
Chartered Acoountants

1CAL Farn Regintralion Mo, =0 437N

Plince ; New Dalhi
Dare : May 12, 2

For and an belalf of 1 he Beard of Directors

Y

£ U
\

/()
\GAL}L" >
M-tﬁl ind
{Direchor
[DIN-DHIE553)

B. Mugunifion
{Direcion)
(DN 0651701 3)
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Ircon Aldoli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

1. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited (the “Company™) is domiciled and incorporated in India and is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company
domiciled in India. The Company (CIN U45309DL2021GOI391629) is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India.

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of *Construction of Eight lane
access controlled expressway from Km 3.000 to Km 20.200 (Shirsad to Akloli Section- SPUR of Vadodara
Mumbai Expressway) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna
(Phase- 1T — Package-XIV). In pursuant to the provisions of “Request for Proposal”, the selected bidder
‘IRCON" has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on 23.12.2021. Accordingly, the Company has
signed the Concession Agreement with NHAT on 27" Jan, 2022 for the project value amounting to Rs
1124 Crore. The Concession peried is 15 years from Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Construction
period is 548 days from Appointed Date. The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District
Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017,

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 12,05.2023.

B. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 1T of
Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111}, as applicable to the financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value;

¢ Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present
value

s (Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

C. Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

1. Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is;




Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating eycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the repaorting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months
afier the reporting pericd

The Company classifies all other ligbilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has idemified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2. Property, plant and equipment

2.1 Recognition and Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured
reliably. Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost,

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates

b)  Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met

¢}  Costdirectly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset
to its working condition for the intended use

d)  Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction
or 1s incidental thereto.

g}  Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

1.2 Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost
of the expenditure can be measured reliably.
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.
2.3 Depreciation and oseful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leaschold land
acquired on perpetual lease is provided on straight line hasis aver the estimated useful lives of the
assets as specified in schedule |1 of the Companies act, 2013.

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those
preseribed in Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013, The useful life has been assessed based on
technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage
of the asset on the basis of the management’s best estimation of getting economic benefits from the
asset. The estimated useful life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts,

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the
useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acguired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/- are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones
provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. *Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the
original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2.4 Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any pain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

3. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an assel’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including
impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. =




Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessmenl is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no loenger exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the assel does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

4. Revenue recognition

Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix D to Ind AS 115— Revenue from Contracts with
Customers)

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 —
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the nature of
consideration.

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAI™) for the
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services.

The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance
services in accordance with Ind AS -115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same
customer and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package
with a single commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends
on the price or performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracts are
single performance obligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is
contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations.

The nature of Company’s contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration including
escalation and liquidated damages. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration
when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration
using most likely amount method.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in
the contract an the same basis as at contract inception.

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as revenue,
or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue over time, if any of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity perform.

b) The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, waork in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced ar

¢} The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date,

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the
total estimated cosl attribulable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not
be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognise
revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the
outcome of the performance obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in
the period in which the entity is able to reasonably measure its progress.

Performance obligation is measured by applying input methad. In the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, which faithfully
depict the Company's performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either
to the contract scope or contract price.

The accounting for modifications of conltracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services
added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are
distinet are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the slandalone selling price.

4.1 Contract balances

s Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goads or
services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services 1o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
coniract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

o Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment
of the consideration is dug).

e Contract liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made. or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
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Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4.2 Other income

» Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

» Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

»  Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to
receive the income is established as per terms of conlract.

5.  Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of finds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

6. Taxes

6.1 Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit
and loss excepl to the extent it relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correfation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in eguity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the (ax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recopnised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utjlised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
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Ircon Alkdoli-Shirsad Expressway Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

7. Foreign Currencies

7.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial stafements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

7.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the forgign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are canverted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the (ransactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on net basis.

8. Employee benefit

8.1 Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the
statement of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

8.2 Post-employment benefits

The Post-employment benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are considered as per the
guidelines of Ircon International Limited., the Holding Company, for the employees on the
deputation from the Holding Company. And there is no post-employment benefits to the
contractual employees.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an intf:_‘gfallz_ggn of the
3 o T8 e
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10.

Company’s cash management.
Dividend

Dividends and interim dividends payahle to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes
in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors
respectively.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

11.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflew of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the abligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, Legal Cases, Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR), Onerous Contracts and others.

11.2 Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the coniract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impainment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to thar contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

11.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is 2 possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible cbligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

11.4 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable,
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12.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct for a period in exchange for
consideration.

12.1 Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, cxcept for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
Icase payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

12.1.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lzase (i.e., the date
the underlving asset is available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incwrred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment,

12.1.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value puarantees. The |ease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment oceurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset,

The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities
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13.

12.1.3 Short term lease and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

12.2 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental fo
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earred.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

13.1 Financial assets
13.1.1 [Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
statement of profit and loss.

13.1.2 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

13.1.2.1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset pive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 1o trade
and other receivables,

13.1.2.2 Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:
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a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assels, and

b. Coentractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

13.1.2.3  Debt instruments at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

13.1.2.4 Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instrumenis
which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recyeling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL catepory are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

13.2 Impairment of financial assets

Expected Credit Loss is the difference between all coniraciual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accardance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial guarantze contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allo
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= Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
s All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment [oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. IT credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is vsed to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses®
in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments
is described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost. contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meels write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the pross
carrying amount.

= Loan commitments and financial puarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability,

» Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOC], the expected
credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value,
Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at
amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment
amount”

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

13.3 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset.

The difference between the carrving amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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13.4 Financial liabilitics

13.4.1 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

13.4.2 Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
13.4.2.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

13.4.2.2 Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Lodans, borrowings, trade pevables and other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, Gains
and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as
well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

13.4.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of & new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

13.4.4 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantec
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
arc directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

13.4.5 Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on inilial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
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external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 1f the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
2ains or losses) or interest.

13.4.6 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle an a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultancously.

14. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair walue
measurament is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the Liability
takes place either:

® Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
# In the ahsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liahility is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
econcimic best interest.

A fair value measurememt of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

#  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities

# Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
asscssing catcporisation (based on the lowest level input that is sipnificant to t11e f'alr value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period, e
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15.

16.

17.

I8.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and
liahilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant nofes,

Non — current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in
the balance sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale, Non-current asset that ceases 1o be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified
as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) ils recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, invesiment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in
the period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

Material prior period errors

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial
and adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed
0.50% of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and accessing performance of the operating segment of the company.

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic eamings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share,
the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Pe——
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19. Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, il these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized
in the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. Actual results could
differ from these estimates,

19.1 Allowances for uncollecied trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems not be collectible.

19.1 Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of pavment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes. Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved, it is
not expected that such contingencies will have material effect on iis financial position.

19.4 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting periad.

19.5 Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business ditferences
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on
various faclors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a4 wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of futurg taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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19.6 Impairment of non financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and iis value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable markel prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.

19.7 Non-current asset held for sale

Mon-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrving
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considerad highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification.

19.8 Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the |lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of inlerest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary 1o oblain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use assel in a similar economic
enviromment.

19.9 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options —
Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencament
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not 1o exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

19.10 Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy, is central to how the Company values the work it has
carried out in each linancial year,

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require,
assessments and judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements, The range of
potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to underlying
profitability and cash flow.

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract :

s [Determination of stage of completion
s Estimation of project completion date
* Provisions for [oresesable loses
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» Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and
variations.

These are reviews at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates

Revenue and costs in respect of conlracts are recognized by reference 1o the stage of completion of
the contract activity af the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total confract costs, where this
would not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable.
When it is probable that contraci costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognized as an expense immediately.
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Deepreciation change for the period
Immpairment
Disposale’Adjustments

Al 31 March 2012

At hPHJ 2022

Dregeeciation charge for the year
Lmspairmint
Lrispoysabs’ Aadjustmenls

At 31 Moreh 20215

Net book value
A3 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

Note:

Deprecintion is provided based on usefisl §ife of assets whicl is in ling with the useful life prescribed m schedule 1 of the Companies Aet, 2013 il disclosed as andor:

Asset Chass

Useful life as
per Schedube 11
{in vears)

Useful life adapted
(i years)

Coumpister

3§

Tlsere is oo class of assets whene the Company uses different useful |ife than thoss prescribed in Schedule I of the Coimpanies Aey, 2013,
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Notes forming parl of the Financind Stalements

(AN emotinis in Indion Rupees Lakha imluss otherwise stated |

3 Deferred Tox Assets (Net) and Tap expense

A ) The major of Inesme 0% expense for the year ended 31 Moreh 2023 ond 31 March 2022 arc:

Parilculars Fur the Perfod
il T
Mareh 2023 021 Inz::]I:; Nlarch

Currant Income tax

Cunent income inx charge 1060 0.1]

Deferrad tax

Fukaing 1o origimuton and reversal of vemporary d[Terences .03 (0.05)

Income tax expense reparted in the siatement of Profit and Loss Sectton ([ 006

B Tho recuneilisifon of fus expunse and the sceeunting profit multiplied by India's demestie mx raie for 31 March 2023 and 31 Marel 2022

Parlicutacs Far the Period
e | rd December
March 2823 ZOZ1 to 30%t March

2012

1. Pra/i{Loss) before 1ax 4106 -

1. Corpormie tax rale ox per Income e Act, 1961 25075 I5.07%

3. Tax on pcepdnfing pacfit 1059 -

4, Effect of it adjusiments

{8 Tux vm expenses not tax deductible: 045 01l

i) Deforred fay capenses ¢ (incomeh iRk} [ IEY

Total effect of tax adjustmen (s .08 .06

5. Income fax expense reported in e statemont of profit and loss (3+4) 10.67 .06

6, Effective tnw rafe & = 51 15 36"% -

£ Compronent of deferred tax assets and (Tobilitles] In Bolance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Farticulars Nalznee Sheet Statemicinds of Profit nnd Less
Asai 3t Asar ¥si For the yesr Fer the Perlod
Mareh, 2013 DMlarch, 2021 | coded 318t 2ird Decom bor
March 2023 (2020 ta 31at MNarch
2012
Pre-incorporaion exponse 0.4 0.0s (] ] {005}
Diepreciation an PPE [LOz) - {1 i -
Net defirred tax Asseis{Linbilities) 0.0z 0.0% 103 {005
0] Delerved tos assels rellected bn Babiuce Sheets
Particulars Asat 3lst Asan 31
March, 2023 Mureh, 2022
Defermed tax smsets .04 008
Delemed wx lmbiliics {0.02) 3
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liahilities) (Neth .02 .05
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N tes forming part of the Fina peial Stioments

(Al nouts m Indian Rupees Lakhs unless olberwise stated)

E} Reconciliation of deferred Dax {Tiabilities) assets:

Parifculars Balance FRocogaised by [Recognised In Balanee
Asal 15t April |[Statement ol JONCI As b 15t Mareh,
1012 (Net) Profit and 1013 Meth

Lot

Presincorporatisn cxpeiss nis FURLTN - o4

Depreciation on PFE = (002 - (0,02)

Met delurred lax Asseis{Liabillies) [ EE] (003 = 0.02

Partlcalars Balance Becopoised In - [Recopnised in Balance
AdatT3nd Stalemont of T dus ot 318t March,
Decernbier 2021 | Profit wnd 2022 (Net)
[PMet) Loss

Pre-incotporation cxpense = s - 005

Net deferved tox Assetsi{Liabilitles) - 0035 - D08

A Cther Non-Current Asseis
Particulars Asat 3st Asat 3ist
Miarch, 2023 March, 2022
[Considered pood wnless othervise siated )
Drepnid Exporssn - i |
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trcan Ak inli-Skiruad Krpresswsy Limsed
ORI IGD 08 1828

Mated formig part of e Fisapciad Stateménty

2 seenomer 7 Ticiim Bropesr Lok snders ol emrded sl

§ Lowrer Aemcin = Fenamcind diiein
4.0 Current Finaneisl Ascebn - frade Rervhnbies

Axar ¥
Fritn March, 3821

Anng ¥
Mareh, 3022

Sevued vunmicad pasl -
Wripscamal_ camialrod oo 4501
Trade Boouivables mhichilave dlgridficet lsonaie i ool sk -
Tl & Mesettwmblcs - il legarired 3

Tapabrmwel Aflowasce Glowanee Tor had sl sdoubn Tl debs)
Urisermsed, coinaiod evedl gocd C
Trale Bervivabiles shich bove signiSzant Incecoe in ceodli Risk :

Trabe Repcivabics - ered it dmpaingd -
Tabal EEE LI

afs v a

Faat Nt r1
Trad= Beclevable Apelip Schedube for the yesr msded s 5y 376l Mureh 3923 sl 305 Misrefs 3902

Fur (ho sear ool 33 Mareh 3658

Particaliss Linbiileg Nt Thwe | Ohudamding far the searemdid March 31303 from the dur dabe of o poesd

Lran s b O a1 1.1 years I pears | Moredhon 3
inaalls FEAF yrary

Telad

Al ed Taiede pecefuzhles = conalilersd

Uniibspated Taiale Reeedvible — wlicl have sl feani fiereae i cradi risk
Lndispuied Trido Reesivablor — orodld imrabed

Bizgined Teade Revalvabibes sonsidered

Bipieal Teade Resstinbies —which have dipfas e | ol fak
Disgiiel Teade feasisablen - coadil impaived

541

524161

joi | §omod @
IS CE ']
T R

| trpadinmein Alk wasise

| Tatal - 3 fd1at . ¥ A F:

For the peried snded 31 Mareli 2601

Foriiveines Unfiilled | Nwifhe | Omsinnding fer the period ended Maceh 31, 3023 Trom e dur duic ol pasmant

L s & il = | 1=3 yéari I=3 yeary Mbore iam 3
manihs TYEEr wesri

Aisculed Tradz reen 3 - e
U dispined Traide Rceei vibles — which B signifcn focrezs: 0 ooldit risk
il Traibe Rasioel watiles = eveudit [ mipained
T Trm e e vubles caricdercd good
Diiwpra el Trade R vabics - witic) Rave dgnifiani inepeses in vedie pish
Disrmed Tradie Reosvabies —credi) impied

" ]
RN U R R ]
PN P A
R [ R R ]
porfeorom o an

[Tl e Allesanzi:

[Tous 2 :

81 Currwnl Finasisl Appetn - Caah and carh eyl valsoty

Ad a3
Paa o ulirs Marcy, 3023

Axal Al
Murch, FHL

Balances whi hanks:
- On eurrsil scopiminli | =
=0 iy i el |} 413

Tintal 413

18

RS

C0F Ra ALLE abibes Bl st eere sewnie (3] Mapeh J0EL R, 189 lukhi held in edreent devsint) which e carmiimiond fund s por ecursasan agresmant enferad wth 1AL

89 Currem) Adssies - Onhor Financkil Assts

Aral 3a
Reerieadoe Mlarsh, 242

Asan lim
Marth 2012

[Unsecored and cumd dered just)
Conbract Awcls
Tirihilledd pvemmis under S0 L0k

1T

Tiani pALTE L)

5T

& Curreed Akl - Cirrsnd Taw Asdeti (¥rid
Aawl Flst
Farlicaliars Mareh, 2007

Asai Sl
March, Ll

o il ledlindmg THS & Aubvarict T (B of Provishon fio Tox ) i

Tiknl F:1]

Nole:
e Nee 1 flar Curt=sl Lax Babslitios (Net) SOFY J020-20

T Delir Corrend A psiy

Anad st

PabimE March. 2021

Ag et 3iu
March, 1L

[Comsidvaed good wnlean sibernbe siuoedy

Adlvagses [ lper than Caplial Advances

Aalvances ta Belated Fordess Troon [sterwaiisnal Limbied (3oliisg Company)
- Advanees 1o Cammielar, Sugp o aed Othey LR

Chiber Aflvaoes :

L5

L7
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Motes focmdng parl of the Fieancial Stotenienls

(AT memumiy in Tadian Rugpees Lakle patess othensine sielend]

& _Equity Share Capital

. Asm 3 s al Mst
Porticukirs March, 2023 March, 1022
Aunthorised Share Caplial
5,000 oquhy chares of Fe 10/ exch L] 500
(50,000 cqui:,-:lmu-; of Bs, L0/ ench pisad ¥ isd MJ[U:IliEE!]

Tunied, mubaciibed and fully paid-op shares
500,000 ey shancs of a1 0f cach 500 500
{50,000 equity shues of R 100 exch o6 a1 3 1=t March 2033}
Toial inanied, subaéribed and faully pald-sp share eapital S.00 508
{a] Datnlls of Provisters shareholding
Slsares leld by Promeler as at 31 Alarch, % chubge
Fasriiculors s during the year
Promater Wi slaiiaics e al total
Mii e shares
As 31 March, 2023 lecon 30,600 1005 .
Irisat jaad
Limiiod
Outstanding 28 the ¢nd of the year SILBTH % -
Slires el by Promoter a5 mt 31 Mareh, e chage
Particulars 2022 mmﬁ-
Prumi Ler %% of tatal P
Mool shares
Jlimy fhares
Jis ot 31 DMach, 20732 Ircoa SC.000 1m0 -
Imermatianal
Limited
Omimstanding oi the end ol the pesiod SO0 Bl %) -

{h) Reconciliarion of the shares nutstapdiaE af the bepinning and af the end af the year

Parficokus As ut Mst March, 2023 Asal s Masch, 2022
Ammontin | Mo of Shares | & izewd in

M. ol §laren | Lakho Lakhs
Al tise begineing ef (se year | (pedod) 50,000 500 . .
Dssued duting the ver ¢ [periad] - - SU000 5,060
Outuandisg ot tho ond of the year / (periad) S0, 000 5.00 S1.000 5.0
ie) Termsy pights nnnached 1o equicy shoves
(i} Vetlng
The Company fus only ene chiss of equliyshargs hoving a par vakie of | per shoare. Yach holder of equity share & cetiled 10 one woie per shane.
i) LbquiEngion

I the evenl of liguidntion o0 ibe Company, e holders of equity shares will be entfiked 10 roeeive remniring 2550t af the Company, ofter discributlon of ol preféneniisl siesunts. The dutribution will be in
peoporting 1o the namber af cquicy shares hobd by the

(1) Dividesd

The shovidemd progicsc! by the Boerd of Drcctors (8 sohject 4o the spproval ef it shareholdes in ensiing Asmital Cioesnal Meoctmg

() Diedails of sharehobders holding more thin 3% shores in ihe Cmopany:

Particulars Asat 313t March, 2023
o, of Shinres | % holding 8
the clasy
Faquity Shares of B 10 cach fully paid
Ircoin bniermal il Limstcd ard i0s oorenecs 5d,600 ]
Poriic alac As sl Alat March, 2012
N, al Shares *a hinlding =
U o]ass
Exuity Shares ol Re. 10 esch fully paid
Ircom Tnlermal ional Linsited and 65 nosminess H0He 1

i} P the peood of pricecdimg e yoars as on the Balsoce sheol dose:
A1 Sluees boughn back: NIl
1) Skarer allniced as falky paid up by vy of boms sharcs: NIl
i} Shores issucd for conmdenotian ocher thas eash: Wil

(f} [oldig Cornpany “M% Ireon Imernations] Limited"" i pubBe sorier construotion oompany, boliding 1007 Equity Shere of the comipany.
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Modes formiog port of the Finsocial Sialemeats

FAT awvimmnis i Trafion Ripees Lokhs nlio othérnise sl

5 Otber Equity
Asaot Jst Asol 316
Pardealaty Mareh, 7023 | March, 2022
Relmned Eamings 1133 (0.m5]
Crunil Bouity 4, 14400 -
Twtal 517531 (LALIR
Iy Movensend as per belon:
Retained Enrmings
] As o 3ist Asor Jiut
Pantani Mareh. 2023 | Diaren, 2022
Dpening Dalawce 10,00) -
Traniefer (ram susplus o staemont ofpee [ and s 313% (0.0
Closing Balinee ETEL] (b ll)
Quasl Egoity
Anai Mst dang 318
Fyrtiomiern Marel. 2023 | March, 2022
Dpeslag Dok - -
Recelol ef Cuiasi Equity 3,144,001 -
Closing Ralance 5 14400 A

iy Neture spild Purposs)
Ritained Earning:
Rctained Earmings represonts the clistrduted pro fits of (he Company.
Junsl Equiiy
Cuzak Bouby represents equity contabation Roin ke Holding Company In fieon e fTnte et Besloan The Compary disss ne luies ey repaymen obligaion wed are defined b5 "Equiey”™ i the cenpmsion
agreenient with WIIAL Accordingly, thure are cansidored to be in i sature o oquity instrumenis.

10 MNob-Corrent Liabiitio - Finane |l Liabibithes

11 Beovowiags

Apal st Asat s
Particalars Mareh, 2023 March, 2022
Laan From Baeks:
Securcd:
‘Loan From Bank of Bumda 3,070.01 -
Tutsd 307004 -
Mot

The Cammpuany kis eatersd o 2 i koot ogreement dusing the Eunchil wear 2022-2% with Bank o Baoda te Orence be profieci for an smounl of Re 68 83700 Lakhs. Drariig the finenciol yess 2028
21, dishariemest of B, 3,070,060 Lakhas (31 Wanch 2022 86l) o8 beon reeelved. The 1erms and condalans and dia il o Mescurity are as ander

1) Dretails of Terms nmd Canditionis

(i) Irlerest imie 10 be charged oo Joan shall be Ovemigh ML withou Siatepie Promuom 0,09 wih modhiy sl Frosmily, sppleabls inrest wie o 2905 pa

{1 Momectum of & molbs fom the date o PCOTVCOD

(it} Term Lo sballbe repayable 36 ] | nafalmends sar aiter & rnnthd enid fmaralopmm i owhich CO0J PCOD B achisved.

(i) ntevem sholl be poid as ord when debned. MCLE Spresd shall be subjest 1o st a3 and whon @ chamges.

%1 Coaperae Guoruntes o el Promoter 1e froon Tuiespsiopal Lipsed {AAMA Raicd) sl be avatlable ullﬂmr:tnﬁ:n wof Lst sanui sty frum M LAT or OO0 + 130 dup_ sl bever s Bice.

1) Details of Security:

The faciliny wpeiher wil 30 inurest, foes, conunmssan and ollyer mones whﬂl:nem:lrl[nl:lc\d and e ta the kender shall be secured, e the cxtont penoitted under the Cancesoon Agroeneni by

(a1 A Fewi movigzge and charge oo oll the Borrower's immovible propesties {iTaay), bath preiomt and faiire, Saove and excipl Projec Assets,

{b] A first charge am ol the Hormawer's tangiblo movabic assers, meluding movahle plast and machinery, maehinery spares, toaln ind acecssariee, famiture, fodures, vohicles omd all ather mawable ageces;
bt presenl and [iove, save dnd exce the Project dssels:

(&) A fel etaepo aver all accounts of (ke Rartower neiuding the Esevow Aesount and Subi-neesunts (arnmy accaurt in sabsititien thereaf) that may be opened i sccordanee with the Concesion
Agroernent, Facility Agreement, Escrow Agrcement o the Supplementnry Escrow Agnecmin® arany 6 the adker Projeer Dosminends and all fands Broon nime G e dopisited thercia, the Receivable
and s ather sesuritizs, provided thal he sime being spplisd o the extent of woterfall of poarity of paymenta as specified in the Cancomian Agrecmiznt and the Ezcreow Agrecment and not begand that;
ol all thic clnrge over the Rezcneables shall be énf ol by Abve Searion Lemder for the puspose of sl Shat the Reesnvalles sse erodied ta Uie Eacraw Aceut far the pripose o F beig spplied 1o
g extent of waierfall of prioily of paynemis ar specified m the Concmsion Apvanonl sl the Exmnne Agreersnt asd not bejond 1hat

] A firat charge uver sl intangible ssseteof the Borrower incluling bui not Smited to goodwil, sghts, undertakings, and uncalled cspital present and future exchaling the Project Assets {Provided: Chil
all the senount received on acconm of any of these shall be deposited in the Bsepow Arcount ard the charges an the cime slall be sabject 1o the extent perrssbile 3 per priarity specified in tbe
Cuneesdion Agresma snd the Escrow Agrosnent), Funhe, o ciwrge on the wunealled copiial, o5 521 in abave, diall be sulijest Towever 1o the provisiens of Corcessien Apesmen

{2} A Dwst chazpe-or essignenem by way o Becusity m;
= all the ighy, ticke, ferests, e, eldns sod demamds whatssever alhe Bomower i, 1oz under the Progecs Daciymesis;
= thez rght, WAl fifoists, benchts, chmms and dand € whotsaever afile Baower (i, (o sl mnider o the Approvals;

= all the oghi, title, tberests, beeefils, clyin el demasds whatssever af the Borrower o, (o and under any lefbor of crede, m Tkl g and Heuids led
aime e 26 perfonmence bend provided by amy party (o the Progoa Documents; al
= ol the iy, ritle, irerests, benedlls, clains sod demmmis whatsoever ol the Barrower i, 1o and under all the Ieumnce Contracts;
AN DERAL BEILA fur io 3 monil's inkevesi aml ope principal inaeknenl.

The entire Security (mehaling execation of Bscrow md Subsiiution sgresment’s shall be created wpiom pricr 1o Lhe dishargenen and perfecied prior 1o diibursemen.
3} There bas been no default in repayment of any of the lopms or mbescst therenzs 26 at the end o the year.
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Modes formsiap part of the Fizancisl Siatements

CAR amanry in Tndfan Rigeeer Ladfs wafess afsendne sigfed]

1

Current Lislifities - Financial Lisbilities

111 Carrent Lisbilites - Trade Povalilos

Refer Note & for Cument 108 ss=efs (nety of FY 2022-23

55

A ai Fist Asal 3isg
Partheulans Mureh, 2023 | March, 012
{A) Micio, Saall & Medivo Brtsmirises 452 =
(B Ouher than Micro, Small & Mediom Emterpriscs
(£} Canteacior, Suppliers and Consallands - 0%
{ied Relaled Partics 431247 -
Tetal 4.3 6.99 025
oot Motas:
u} Didelssuses us requlral woder Canpanis As, 20137 Moo, Sawmll and Medhion Enverpriss Develapment e 2006 {MEMED) ar provided in Woig 35,
b Terma and Condiions sl ather baluness with related pormies ore disclesed m Mate 24
c} Trade payohles Ageig Schedule for the year ended et 315t Murel W and 3t harch 3027
Partcal Cluiatanding for b year swded Mareh 31, 3003 from ihe due
date of T
Unbilled Mot Dwe e Lyear | 12 pear 23 yiir T PR—" Tatal
[years
Tatsl acistandang does of micrs enteprises and small eoteoprisss 0.70 17 [N} - B 451
Tolal nuristanding cues of creditors alher thun micre enlerprises and seall enemprises - + 431247 - - 431247
Dizputed dues of iwicra paesrprises and snall sniémeies - = - = - -
Diigpidnd chis of ereditors ather tha miera enterprises und small ederrizes - - - - . =
a7 imn 4, 312,58 - - 431650
Particriars Outstanding far the perivd ended March 31, 2022 from the due
llate of paymesi
Wimlsiled Mol 1N T
] year | T-1 year -3 yuar I re than 3 s
Y
Total ouistanding dwes of mhcro enterprises and sl esierprises - = = F &
Towl outstondirg decs af maitacs ather than misvo smorprises and anall enlurprses a.1s - - - = fizs
Disputed does of mivre enteoprises and ssoall crfierpises - - - - -
Dispruizd does of crediters aiher than micrs et erprises and saall T & - * a » g
0.5 - - - - s
102 Curreit Lishilltes - Other Fluaqeiul Lisb ilivies
Al Ilst Azat st
Rokr iy March, 2023 | March, 2012
Unsecured
Pmynble ta Hnlding Ceompany R A] 544
Amount Payable 1o Client 227 -
Intcrest accreed on fecaed bomowimgs 0aT -
Tomal 12404 G4
B2 Other Cormvnt Liabiliies
Asal Ilst Arast Siat
Paiticula
T March, 2023 |  Maeeh, 2022
Staiutory Dues 19376 =z
Tatnl 155,76 -
13 Current BabBitles « Current tan U ldiities (uety
Asal 3w Asut 3l
Purikcalars March, 3023 Mapch, 212
Provislos Bor aw (Mot of Advases Tax) all
Total - a1l
Peudn:
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Nntex [nrluh.g part of the Flnan clnl Sratemciis

Sl smeels i Inafinn Bopees Lol valoss athoraie s ha)

I4 Revenus from operations

Particulurs Farthe vear | Fuor the Furlod
euded 3oL 23rd Decemther
Mlurch 2023 202 1o Mst
Mareh 032
Favenug (rom operation
Copimet 1evenis 654270 1.74
Tuotn] A543 1.74
15 kil Bivt nme
Farticulary Forthe year | For the Period
ended 3130 | 23rd Degember
Mlarch 2HEY 02 10 Mg
Niarch 20123
Imtercst Inconse from
= Advaice o Eoldmg Comymeny Lo Tooun knomationa] Linlied A143 -
Tkl 4242
Ié Project Expeises
Particulnr For dhe year | Far the Perind
ended At 23nl December
flspch 2023 2621 o M
MBarch 2022
Wock Eapenses A6 -
Indeperdent Engleer bupection Clages A5 08 -
Tkl EAES B -
17 Emplayee benefits expensca
Farticular For thy yean | Fer ihe Poriod
sadind 351 | 23] December
Mlasch 2023 2021 o Mat
March 2022
Sikiries, Wapes ind Bosuy 15.59
Contribotion to Provadent ascd Oiber Funds It
Retiromw oo fis 140 -
Sall Welllie A
Tetal 2343
Note: Discloyures onper Ind A% 19 - *Engployee Bencfits” in respert of prowmsion o fow el s varioos comsbyer boeelil s e provided m Sole 22
18 Findoec cels
Farticulars For the your | Fer the Pedod
snded 3151 | 23] Decenber
Mlurch 2023 2021 1o Msi
MEarch I0EE
Tuterest cost on fHwamels] Nabdbliles measured ol omsortleed coxt
= imenear Expenss on Term Laan iz -
Inleresd an Income Tix snid acher stamory dues TG -
Oither bormawing coms
- Bank Guamntee & Other Charpes w19 -
Tetil 247 =
1% Depreciation, mmortlyation amd impaiment
Panriculars Fer Uie vear | For he Porisd
cmded kst | 23rd Decemiber
March 2023 ZUZ1 10 3151
Mlarch 2021
Deprecintion o Proparty, Plutt and Equinmcnt 0o -
Tatul LK -
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Troon Aldali-Shirss d Expressway Limitzd
CIN:-UASI0R D202 G0 | 1628

Nodes formiing part el (e Financinl Stutemenis

falil amowetr Lo Inatien Ripaees Lakhr vailoss askerwise e}

i}

20 Other Expenses

L0

Particulurs Furiheyear | Farthe Feriod
endled 35t 23 Beccmbor
Alarch 2023 I8l e Mk
Plurch 2022
Paymend tn the Audfars (R efer Nose (6 belawy ] o5
Lupatd Peofssional charges [ 1] 12
Pre-moorporalion experte - Q49
Prnbing and Stalionery capense 043 -
Rerid 301 040
Dard; Clarges 1 038
Travulling Cxpendet 064 -
lnsitanes 650 -
Repair anl Mairaunzmes 0.65 .
Kotz & Toxes oz .
Idiss Expenses (Refer Mate (i) below | .65 -
Tetal 5158 L4
Paymcnd to the Auditars
Particulars For e vear | Fur the Perlod
ended 3190 | 230 Desemilier
Mlarek 2033 202 1o M3t
Nlareh 222
Foynent o the wulicoe's foe
As mdinoe:
- Snamtery Anli Fee WS n2s
- Tan Aufit Fee o0s -
= Limiled Review Tec [| X5 =
Im piber capacity:
« Otk Setvioes - -
<R of cxperses F .
Tatal [ 1] 0,15

Ineludes ponality for lace filing of profssional tax nefurms of Bs. .11 kkhs
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Ercon Aklnli-5 hirgad E:Frulm:,l TAmred
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Mates farming part of the Finaneiol Statemenis
{ALLamounts in Inding Rupees Lukhs unless oerwise stuted)

11 Disclesure us per Ind AS [ “Fresentation of financinl Starements”

0] Changes in signilicant 1 coounting policies
Draring the yeor, following chomges 1o secounting policies have been made:
(i} Chonges have been made in Policy No. 2 *Froperty, plant and equipment” for uniformsity with the Hobding Comgpany and improved diselesure,
(it} There ks 50 impact on the Aumeial statemants due 1o the thove chimpes.

L) Reclassification and comparative fpures
echussi fentionsRegrouping hnve beon made whesever necewary W the comparniiee perind's finome al stalcaend:
- 10 euhanoe the compacibilin with the carrent yea's Misapelal statemonts
« 10 ensure eomplinnee with the Guidonce note an Divizian 11 - Ind AS Schedule [ to the Companies Act
Therefore, certabngrior perdods mucunt have been seckssifed regrouped for eonsistancy with the curreat period présentativoss, These reclassilcations baveno
efficet on the reponed results of opecmians. Adsa previous yoar 1 pures ore shown usder bracket () to difforenioee from eurrent year fipures.

12 Discluswre as por Ind AS 19 on Employer bemelits
The ermployess In lnean Akkoll-Shicsad Expressway Liited are padted an pemingzon’ sccandment baris from leean International Limdted (Helding Company).

[ bermes of accourding palicy of the Company (Nots No. 2.2,7) and srmngement swith the Holding Comparry, the proviswen (or Retizerment Bene fits sucl us
previdnt fnd, pengion, gassity, ool relrement medical benefits; Leaves and other (orminal beme s oM nomingied wepleyees is boing made by Helding
eetripiay in terms of Ind AS-19, The enwunt pald or payable towards pravident fund, penslon, gmteity, past retirement medicol benafits, Leaves and ather
teriminnl beaefit i the holding compny are meladed " Employee Beoelt Exponscs” (Nobe 17)

Provident Fund Coniribution of the emplayees en pomination/secondmeni bave been regularly depasiied by the holdin g campany with its F Tras.

13 Disclosure as por Ind A% 21 “The Effeets of Changes ln Foreign Exchange Rates”
The amount of exchange difforences (net) erediedidobited bo the statement of profil and loss is NI Mash 2022 Wil

24 [elated Pacly Disclosmres
Digcleire o per Ind AS 24 *Reluted Party Disclosures” are a under:
a}  List af Related Partizs

[ Halding company
Lieen lateenasiong] Limited

(Hy Koy Mumageioent Perasinel (KMEF)
FPurt Time amd NMeu Excealive Diroctars

Name Dresizination

Slerd Ashiok K umer Giayal Part Time and Non Exceative Direetor - fwee £ 231 22020 te 1071072022}
Shri Parag Verma Tart Tlne and Non Execuitive Direstor  [weef 23/12/2021)

Shri B Mugunthan Tart Thne and Moo Cxegntive Director  (we @ 2371220213

Sl Mosgod Alimad Part Tlme asd Non Exeeutive Direetor  (wee f 23/122021)

Sleri Dewerndra Kwrar Sharma Farl Time nod Non Exccutive Director {wee £ 10/ VIR

Bemaneratien ta Key Mansgement Personnel: Compony hed Par-time and Moo Executive Diectons durmg e Gnancial yeas 202223 and 2021-22,
nominates o te Board by the Holding Company, de ool dmwv any remunsration fom ihe Company. No siting fee is paid 1o Part- Lme and Man

Execumive Dicectars.
b) Tramsactions with otber related pariics are a3 follows:
Mature of traogsetion Mume of relnied Nsture ul’ Fur the year For the Fevlod
pariy relntiomship ended st Miareh  23pd December
2 2020 ta 3 st
March 10221

L} Wotk expensci LEA LR -

I} Reimbursement expenses of PF, Pension, GIS, BG Charpes elc 8.7 593

3} Remt Expenie {me s ive af G5T) lrzun 3.0 .50

4} Mabilialion Advance Inbemational Halding Conpany 500000 ;

5} Procgeds from Issuc of Equity Share Capiind Limited. - 5400

&} Recwipt 0f Quas] Equicy (Interest Tree Joan) 5,094.00 .

Th Imterest Income on Mobilisation Advancs 42 43 -

e} Omesrnmiding halunses with the relote d pariles arc ag follows:

Muture of trasnciien Nwmie of relaied MNutwre of ool 3ar Murels, As i
party relationship il Jtst Mareli, 2022
1] Motbriisa ion Advanoe Lizon 000,00 -
2} Interest Acenicd on Mabillation Advance [mizrmstional Habkling Compary 3519 -
3] Balance Payable as on reponting date Linnited 431557 544

ﬂj Ternes and comditioms of tromsaciiens wilh related puribes

(1 Trorsastions with retaied pariies sro made on wrms equivelent o those that presail ie arm's lengh trasmstions

{ii} Owintonding balanees of relared parties ar thi reponing date are wnsectmed nad senfemeat ocenry tenugh banking tansiotion Tlese kel cs o
imeresl Free cxiepl Muobiisatian Advance on which infeozsl s :h;u'uuubln atam inlerest mie uqll;ll 1o the aAvErIge ol mne yean Ml:,‘]_ﬂ.u-ﬁop A Seheduled
Conmpercinl bopks plus 1.25%
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15 Earningsper shnre (EPS)
Basle EPS is coleulated by dividing the profit for the peried aitelbuobbo to cquisy holdees by the welglied svege sanber of equity shases outstanding during
e pering,

Dihuted EPS ix calculaied by dividing the peolil (or fle periad atifhiitable to the equity bokdess aller comyidering the offoel of dikition by weighted avernze
number of equity shases aussianding during e petiod phus the weighied average aumber of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the d ilutive
potential cquity shares nta equity shares.

{i} Basie ond diluted earniogs per share (in Bs.)

Parliculars Maole Far the yoar Faor the Period
ended 3at March  23rd Decembar
0623 2021 to Mst
March 2022
Frofit sitibutshle o Equity holdoes (s o lakhs) Liiy Ly [0.86)
Mo.of squitty shares 50,0100 30,000
Wemghicd average number of squity shares autsinnding dunng the periad 0] 50,000 0,004
Earnings per share { Busic) 61,78 (0.£2)
Earninags pet share { Dililed) 6l 78 (0.2}
Face walue per share 10,00 10.00

(if) Prafit atrributable to equity sharcholders (osed as nemerotor) (R, in Inkhs)

Partlculars Fur the year For the Period
emded 3051 Mareh  235d December
1023 2021 to 3ist
March 2022
Profit far the yeor as per Staienent af Profit and Loss 3139 [T}
Frofic srcibutobls o Equity holders of e comipany used for computing EPS 3139 {0.06)
(i) Welghred overage member of equlty shaces (used as denomlnatar) (Nos.)
Particulars For the year For the Fariod
ended 3kaf Flarch  23nd Beoember
013 2021 o 3Lst
March 2022
Opening balonce of (2sued equity sharea 50,004 -
Egquity shares issucd diring the periac - 0,000
Weichled averoge number of equiiy shares for computing Bosk EPS 50,004 50,000
Dilution Effeci:
Add: Weighed avernze monisers o potontia| equity shorss outstanding during the period - -
Weighted averase number of equily shares for computing Dituled EI'S 50,008 51, 0H)
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26 Tenpairmscnt ol Assets
Diuriny he year, Doy hos carmed ol asessient on mapainmen of indiv idual aesets by woang oat the recoverable amound based on lover of e oot elisable value end carying
cost o terms oF 1od AS 36, "Impaloment of Assols” morlied under soctlon (33 el the conspunies Act, 2083 read with Ruale 3 of the Companies (Inddian Accounting Standards) Busles,
2013 amal Compooiss (Indim ing standords) Amendment Fules 2016 There are no indizators which fead (o ny isspnirment of asiats af e Company. Accordimgly, impaiment
T o N (31 Mlunch 2002 NNl s hcen provided for

27 Comtlugent Babdlitios, contingunt ussets and commadtimen is
A, Contingent Rabilliies
(1) Claims agpdest e Company not ackiowledged as debts 22 an the reportiog doe ace Nil {31 Barch 2003; Mil),

B, Contimgent as5ety
Comlnger Assoe as on the reporting dape ane N1 {31 March 2021 Nil),

¢ Commitmenis
(1) Eatimatcd ameumt of canfracts remaining 1o be cxceutcd on capital aocoumi(net of achvance) and nod provided for ks NI(I T March 2022: Nily
{5} Qither Comaitoe b igwands EPC Sub-Contract work remsn g for execution (oes of sdyanec) and not provided foe oo March 31, 2023 & Ry 9528283 Laldiz (3] March
2072 MY

28 Scgment Reporting
() Gemeril [nformatien
Cperntmy segmests nre defined as componenis of an esterprse foc which discrete financial infirmatios i3 avallabiz wheh is ey evaluatsd e gulody by e Chiel Opomimg
Decision Maker {COD M) in devuding how (o ullocais roouress and asscssing perlommncs: The Boand of Direoioss of the Company is tie Chie( Oyemuting Dieision Muker
[(CODM, The Company is engaged in the besiness of infrartrcture development in He state of Mubamshor and the Cluef Operating Decisian Malier (CODM) monitars the
eputising resuls of the budness a8 2 single seymwnt. Hence, the Company has only ons repertable segment, which is Development of Expresswiry, [nformatinn aboat the
repartable sopenaeot 15 sioe us refleesed im the 1ancial stacmenta. Henee, b scparmie scgmenl nceds o be disclosad in occordinos with the requiroments of Ind AS 108,

(i Information about geographical information
Ar e Coempany operoies in @ slople geogrophical segment Lo, India. Thensfore, there te no sepanibe feportable gedgraphical sepment

(i) Iafarmmdon shout major customern
Reverne of M. 554320 Laldu (FY 2020.23; Rs. 1,74 Lakhs) are derived from a singe customer .. NEIAL wihich |s meee tham 10%% of the Conpany's total sovene,

29 Financinl Bistc Manamemen |
The Cornpany’ s prrivedps] Mineneal Dobilifies rpamses | 3, imde pay bics and wihor parynliles in domestic eunency. The main purpase of ihess fwanciol lizbiliues i 1o Onasce
ihe Compuny's operations, The Company™s principal finascis] assets include uode usd other receivables and eash and cugh equivalones. Th Conipany |8 enpesed to tlse Mllowing risks
(i e uso of Mnancial insrwnenis: Crodil risk, Ligquidity risk and Markot rigk

ik Management Fromewarlk

The Company' s schivitics make itameeplible bo variows ngks. The Campany lin taken adequate miensres b2 widress sach concems by developing adequale sysicnis und practoes, The

Board o Direetors has oversll cespoasibility for the essablisluvent aml ovessight of the Coupary’s ek nmisgement framework.

w)  Credil Risk

Crediy visk is the dsboof founelal loss o the Compony if o customur or erpranty o & fl lul as Tl ws mewr s contmmenal ohiipatinas reslting in o Tnancial Inss
15 the Company. Credivdsk srises principally foom wade roceivabies, cash and eash equivalems with banks and ather Mnoncial assces. The Company's expodws and credii ratings
of s conmerarties are continoasly manilared by the mannge menl.
Cush and cuib equivalonts
The Carnpomy beld gnsh and cazh equivnients of Rs. 4.3 lakhe (30 March 2022 : e 389 dakhsp. The cashand cosh equisalems are bebd i public secior banks with stromg
credit fatings
Traabe Ruerivalibes wnd Other lnanclal assets
The Compamy’s exposure bo credit rsk iz infhienced moindy by the characieristies of the ¢ustemer, The demographice of the customer, Inclumrmih: defmit risk af the industry
amdl coumiry inwhich the customer operates, alsn hasan influznce on credil risk assessment. The Craopaay derives revenae prisusliy fro 1he Cnstnc ton of Expressweay and
ther finoiesl asicts prtnarily reles 1o the anhilbed evemue ader Serviee Cancession Arungement (20AY The credit rsk arcing from these imde reeeivables and unbilled
revenue i lanite becovse the coumerparty is Noshounl Higlvways Auilearisy of lialio (VHAT, an sutoncmavs agency of Governmient of lodia, with capscivy to meet the
obbigaions and tweefon, be rish of defual is very neglizible or Ml

(i} Exposire do oredit risk

Partheulaim As ot 51 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Finane]al Aseete for which sllewance & ieasured uslog 12 moniths Expeetod Crodit Lasses [LECL)

Casly and Cask Equdvalems 403 349
Financial Assais for selilch allvwance |5 meosured wslng Bfe-ghaee vapected crodli boss o prer Slusplifled

Approuch

Trads Reccivablo 24162 =
Unhillei revenie 210 59 I.74
Tata) T34 764 568

60



Treon Akdoli-Shimad Expresowvay Limited
CIN:-U4539DL 2011 GOBIES
Mates foming part of the Fimoncind Stlements

AN amounts in [ndisn Rupecs Lakhs sobess otherwise siatel)

(i Summary of clange [ loss allvwanees messured using Simplificd approach

Porvdeubars

Ao nit 31 Manch X023

Ak 2l 31 hlarch 2022

Opestay Allowinops
Insgainpens Joss recognised during doe perdod

o written-off diring e pericd
Tultal

Dunng the veir, the Company has reeognised lass allowanee of Nil (31 March, 2022 © Rs. Nil)
Summary of clange i loss allowances measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (LECL) approach

FPurtieolars

Anat 3 Manch 2023

\As al 30 March 2O0E

Uhpenlng Allowances
Impoirment loss: ecognised during the period
Ao vrinen-off doring (he pericd.

Tuotal

Mo significont changes m sstimation technigues or assumptions were made during the reporting year Dwring the year, the Company has rocognised loss allowanee

of Nil {31 March, 2022 s Ry Nl s

b) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that 1be Company will cncounter diffieyliy in meeling the obliztions wsociated with s Gaoeciol Labilides ol are saded by delivering cash or anotlier
financizl assct. The Congnny’ & appraach bo nunoging lquidie i3 to ensire, o8 faras possible, that i will have sufficiont Fiqeidite to meet 5 Robilities wien they are'due, under
bole nocmal and stressed cond|iens, without moaming wnacceptable lesses of riskng damags o the Company’s coputation. Ligsidity poaition of 1he Crogrmy i sevicwed on o

repular bmgis by the Board of Dircctors and appropriste declsions ane ken aceording bo the sluation

The il helow provides deinils negarding the sigmificant financial labilides n5.at 31 Manch 2023 ond 31 Maneh 2022

Porticolars As ot 31 Marels 2023
Liss dhan 1 1-2 Years 2 Years nnd Above Tatal
Yiur
Term Loan fram Banks - 31478 1,55532 3470.00
Leaxe Lunbilties - - - .
Trade Payable 431699 - - 431659
ither Fi | Liabiticy | 20t = = 12.04
(Total 4,329,063 514,78 15 7.399.03
Particutars As ol 31 Marel 2022
Lees diam 1 1-2 Yean 2 Years und Above Tatn|
Vear
{Term Lowun froin Bunks = - = -
Liage Linhbiliiza - - - =
Trde Mayahle 025 = ) 0.15
Othes Finaneial Libiliy 54 - > S44
Tuoal 540 = = 568
o) Mlarke risk
Mlarkss risle in tha rigk that the fir valus af funire e flows of o feancial | vl i beeyusa ol el it ekt prices. Mkt 1isk comprises Forvin

currency tisk nnd Inforest e risk. This abjective of marker rish manogersent is 1 monaps mel earteal market risk expasares within accaptabls paramaters, while aptimising b
seharne The Boond of Direetiors is reaparsible fee sctting up of policies and procedures to nimege mscket itk of the Compary

Curreney risk

The Canspsary operabes in India only and the functional cumrency of the Cormparny 8 also Indhin Rupees. The Compuny his no rangoctinn in edmaney ofher than Lnetiona]

cimency and herefore, the Compony is oot exposcd o foreign cumeney ris ke,

Imterest e risk

Tmterest rute rik G the risk that ihe Gir vabue o the M exs? flows of § Tinsnelal irstrumen will st becisse af changes in market interest rates The Campamy is exposed
Ao |mbereat sate clak ariaing matndy from nen-surcm bomowings with (looling inleres! rate boeaupe the cush fMows asrocialed with Nosting rate borrewings will Maetoate with

ehanges in micrest mics:

Avthe reparting data, dse interest rawe profilo of e Company's invercsi-bearing Tnancial ivstruments is 25 follows:

Particulnrs

Asar S0 Moreh 2025

Asan 31 March 212

Fixzd-rate insiriments 1
Flaanclal Asseis
Finaneinl Liabilitics

Warinhle=rate instruments:
Fimancial Assets
Fimontial Lisbiliies

3,000
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30 Fair Yahie Measurementz
a)  Financial imstroments by «afegory

Purticulary As st 3] Morch 2023
FYTPL FYTOCT Anorilsed Cout
Findncial Asiets
() ush apd s equivalents - - 413
(i) Traide Reesivubles - - 5341 62
(i) Crber cuisrent finsneisl sssen = - 1,101 89
- - TM7T.64
Fimancial Lialilities
(i) Borrowings . - 3,070.00
(F) Trade Payablkes - - 4,506 99
(iiLh Cribser fimancial liwhiies = = 12 b
- - T,300.03
Farticalars A5l 31 March 2022
F¥TPL FVTOC! Amartised Cost
Fimnmgial Asseiy
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents = = 189
(i) Diker eurmen! Anancial dsset - - 174
- - 5.63
Fiinaneial LikiiGtes
(0 Trade Payztibs - . 0.25
(i) Diker Fnencial labilies = = 5.4
= - 5.69

b} Fuir value hicrarchy
Finaneial da301s and financ ol |iobilibes aoe meadured av fair valun i these Gnaneiad sajements snd are grouped inte three levels of o foicvabue hicoochy, The duee Levels are
cefined baied on ile ohasrebility of sipnifica inpuis ta the measmcment, as follaws:
Leyel 1: Quoled prices {uiadjusiedy i active markeis for idontical assots o liabilitcs
Lewel 2: Inpuis other tham o inted prices incloded within Level | that ane obserabde for the agsel o [5abiliny, eiflver direcly or mdmecily
Level 3: Unohservable inpeits for thi asser ar Lishility

o) Corrying valee snd Fair voloe of finnneisl asets oud Bobilities as ot 319t Morel 2023 ame 3151 March 2022

Purticulars Carrying Value Filr Value
L wef-1 TatvelX Bacveld
Floancil Assets sl Aavortbeal Cost
i) Cash ardl cash equive s 4,13 - - 403
(i} Teade Boceivabiles S241.52 - - 5241.62
titiy Cther eorent fimene ol nases 2,100,489 - - 2,101.89
T347.64 - - TI4T.64
Financial Linbilitics at Amoriiced Cast
(1) Harmowrings o0 307000
(ii} Touede Pusables 4316395 - - o 31699
Cildy Other Enancia| sbililics i2.04 - - | 2.04
F35.03 - - 7.309.03
Partfoulirs Carrying Voluy Fulr Vilise
Level-1 Levelkd Levekd
|Financial Assols 3l Ameribed Cost
(1) Cashand cash oguivilents 180 - - ]
(3]} Oeher cumrent finameial asch 174 - - 174
563 - - 5.63
Filnancial Liahilites at Amortld Cost
(1) Teade Payobles 015 - - [ k]
(01 Other Bnanetal b bahities 544 - - 5.44
569 - - 5.6Y9

The monagemen assessed i fir value of vash amd eash equivalepds, Irade receivablos, irade pavablos, and alher currom lnaneisl asses [ labilities approximate their carmying
amcunts langely dus o the slor-temm masirities of thess instrurnents, The fir vafue of the financial sssels and (ieoilities & incheded ni the amoomt at which the nstrumest could
e exchanged in 4 cument Lransaciion batween willlng partics,
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Y Capital Mansgement

The Company’s ebjeive Lo manage it capital ina manoer w nsuee and salognard iheic ability o corlinue as a going coneom so bl dle Company can cortinue lo provide maximmm

retums ta shomeholders and bene(itto cther suksholders and aleo 1o omlvmn @ apprograe caphal streetare of debt and eguity. The capital strsctune o Mife compauy s based an

mamagement's judycement of il sratogie and day-to-day noeds wilk o focus on ol squityse a5 i mointnis invesor, credizors and market confidonca The mussgementand the Board
af Direthars monitor the retsm on eapitnl. The Campony may take appropriste steps in arder to maimtan, or if pedessary adjus, ity capital ginuslure

Furibier, tle Company manages its capstal stnwiure fo make adjustmens in bight of changes i cconomic conditions and the sequirements of the luancial covenils.

The Campany monitors copital, on tie basis of 2 number of financinl ratios genoralty nsed by industry and by the mting arencics. The Compamy monitors capital using
daby oouiny rotin which is debt divided by total equity. Debt comprises of non-cerrent ond current momiriiies of long tern debi. The debt eguity ratic at the e of the
reporting perod was as follows:

Particulars Ak at 31 March 2027 [As a1 31 March 2622
Horowings (Mate Mo, L0L) 307000 -
Curremt Maturiiies of Lang term Digbi - =
Delw 3.070.00 -
Equity (Mote Mo §) 300 .00
[Cibier Egnity (¥ oe Bo. 93 5,175,33% {11.06)
|Frtal Equity S.160.33 494
Debt Equity Ratie .58 -
31 Revense

A Diwmppregation of Hevenue

Huoving regard to e nancre of contmet with tusiomer, there i only e tpe o ciegory of revenue:

Far (he venr enaded Marel 31, 1023

Type of Prodactor Revenue as per [nd AS 115 Method for measuring Other Revenoe | Tetol as per Sisle ment

Service Imgiuf Meifod |t Method of Profit amd Loss

gzl g i 34220 6 542 20 - 4243 6 3k 61

Tatul 54220 6 54228 - 2.1 6 SH8.E3

For the period eeded March 31, 2021

Typo of Froductar Hevenuo as per [nd AS 115 Aethod for measuring CHher Hevernue | Tatad an per Sixtement

Services perfynmanee oliflgation wf Proflt amd Lioss
Imgrut Bedivod
itput Metbod
Hiylway 1.74 1.74 “ + 1.74
Toink 1.74 1,74 = - 174

The cornpamy his red cosl inourmed as inpoel in measues the prrgeess lowands satisfacion of pefonnones abiizatien sod due w the oneemolnty invelved 1m the il phass ef
e conlract b mvaswring the performante obdigalion of construe lion of lighway toad, he revenue is recapnised o ihe oalenl of comtaet cost incumed in atcondance wilh Ind
AS 115, The tewnl revenoe recagnised under Ind A5 115 during e year, Ra 6,540 Lakha { for the persod ended 31 March, 2023 . Re, 1,74 Lakhs) s recognised over o period

af time,
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[ 1) amoaints i [odias Rupees Laklis usibess pilsenvise stacd)

B Conlrct bakmces

Particulurs As &l 31 March 2023 As o 30 March 2022
Trugle Receivabled (MNote 5.1) 524162 -
Coniriet Assels hoie 5.3] 2,101,859 .74
Coatract List ik v 2

i}

Conlraet Assols are rwcuguised over (bo pericd in which secvices are perlprmed o sepregent the Company's nightl o considesation i exclhangs fur pouds oe senvives s fored o
Thie amsvomer. It ingludes balanees duk from customen wider soratruction cenlmets that arise when the Company reccives payment fram cosomer aa par senra of the comraet
hoowever the revenue is recopnised aver the period under Byt method. Any ammnt previoms|y recopaised 635 § contmset asgel 18 reclassificd (o tmde receivables on satisfaction of

the comdilicn ailached e e sendce which is nocessary (o acloeve e hilling milesone,

Mloveneenl in contract balamess daring (e year

Purticulars For the yeor ended For the Perind 23rd
Jst March 2023 December 2021 to 318 March
22
Contract aiset ot the Bigimning of the perind 174 -
Coniract ngsel ol e end of e period 210189 1.74
Mt increaaeldecr ense) 2,190.15 1.74

For the Finances| 2022-23 and 2021-27 - There has been an net iseresse of Re. LIS Lakhe and s, |74 Lakks respeetvely as campared o promons sy doe b meognition
of reveniss hased o inpul method, Dering the yrar cmBad 3 March, 2023 and 31510 March 2002, Ry J 44205 Lakhs and Ea Nil respoativoly of cowiruct assots md bon
reckissifled 10 wade recelvables.

Contract lhilitics rolaing 1o cansimiclion coremcis we balances dug 1o custamers, these anse when a panscular malestone pavinent exeesds (e revenue weopaized w dag
under the (nput tiethod ood advance reeelved in long tem eonstruetban conrcls. The emount of Advance reseived gets adiusted over the construction period 55 and when
inwoich g is mode to Lhe cusiomer. There are no Contract lisblities az-at 31 Morch 2023 ond 30 March 2022

Muowvemest in contract bulances during ibe venr

Particalirs

Fortho year ended
Xiut Mareh 2023

For the Period 23rd
Degemalier 2021 to 318t March
| |

Contract labilities oi the Bey iming of the period
Contruct fnbilities ot the end of the period

Mt ingrenseddecroase)

T, Sctoul bebow is he ameund of revenue recognbsed from:

Porticalars

As at 31 Morch 2023

As ot 31 Murch 202

Aot ineluded By comrset labiities ot the beg inning of the piriod
Ferfarmance ablipation sonsficd in prevcos ponoed

v Cost to abiain {le contract
Amouni recogniscd a5 assel as 08 3 1d March, 2003 1 Mil { As ot 3 ket March, 2022 Mil)

m

Tramsaction price alflocated to the remeining performamee nbliganans

The tmasactian price Tor eensining perfmmee nblipngions shall be recsived over thecanrmet parind (n propeniom of the worck perfmmsd‘e rdees provided By the Caompany
Thie following t@hle shows unsalisficd performance obligations resulting from long-tenm construction confracts;

Puriiculars Avat 31 March Asat 31 March 24227
2013+

'Within ane year 9155249 | Appomied die yet o be

Mure than one year 1o 2 yeirs 14, 10860 ixsued

Muorc than 2 years 43.73

Taotal L.06,T04.54 -

**The amount disclnsed 31bave does nut include vanahble considesation which s constramed,
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{4l anownls o indian Bupees Lokl unless othurwiss staled]

A3 Service Concession A rrapgements
Diisc|osure pursuant 0 Appendic Dol Ind AS 115 "Service Concesslpn Arrangesicali” {8 a5 umler:

")

L]
it
i)
i)

Drescrlption of ihe arrangement

Treon Akloli-5himad Exprossway Limied {Treon ASEL), o whedlpouned subsidiury of Treon Tmematong! Lindied s been ivcemoraied o o Speein] Purpove Vehicle on
Drecomoer 23, 2021, pursusnt (o2 conditions es stipulated in Leter of Aveard {sswed by Maioe Hiphwsy Aubory of Indio (WHAR. Ireon Alloli-Shirsag Exprossony Limived
(IrennASELY has entered in by sorvice coacessbon amrangement an 27th Jannary 2022 with Natienal [Tighway mathenity of Indi [(NHTAT) in tesma of which NIIAT {Authonty] has
sullmerised (e company ta cary the business of Constroetion of Eight Laae soe s contiollel Expresswy Irom Bm 300 o Km 20 30 {deayn Engih 17 200 k) Gom Shorsad
1o Aklall Sexfion SPLIR of Vodedara Mumbai Expressway{hercinafier called the "Vadolera Mumbai Expressway) o the State of Maharshiz ander Blurmala Padyojara
{[Phiase [-Packuge X1V) by Eight laning thereof (ihe "Prajéct™ on Hybrid Annoity busis, which éhall be penly Bnoneed by the concessionnire who skall recaver ks invesiment
and easty througl paymeont 1o ba made by the sutharity, in accondance with the terme and condifions scl in the coseewsion agreemend,

Significant terms af the pramgemoni

Period of the Concession ; 15 Years [imm Commercial Qpemton Dale (00D),

Comstrution Perlod | $48 divs From Appoloted Dase ve, from 1078 L2022

Paymont Temma = Bid Praject Com [B0C) = R, 1024 crone. 40%: of tho B, ndfustid for the Prce tndex Multiple, sholl be dise amd payabls in Heaqiml installments of 4% ench
during the Contineion period ol sensnining BN, sdjusted fiore tlhe Price Dndes Mnbii ple, shall be doe snd payabls i 30 basmal wstalhoents commensing from the 150 duy
of COD,

In termes of the said .lsrnermnltlcnnﬁﬂl_-'l_ has moﬂsltl o use the specilbed asseis ond has an I:'I[IPICID“‘I cnmpld: consinacton of the Iunled and ja ke=p Mepmjetl OERELS 6 pIpEr
working conditron melwding all projects assces whode lves lave capired.

At the'end of ke concesioa period, the assels will be trips feved hock to Naticaal Highway Awihorty of Bredia (NHATL

L case of material breach in tenns of 2 gréement the MH AL and IconASEL hove mubt fo termmate the agreement i they are nol abbe (o cupe the svenl of def ol in sceordones with
sach ugrecmenl

¢]  Financial assets (Service comcestinon reeeivaliles)
The company has recogniasd unbilled receivable of Re.2,191.89 Laklis (Rs. 1.74 Lakhs) under service concession amangement and thovwn wnder Other Financial cumont Assets
which it will recenvens per terms of the contraet based on the completion of milestune, as on 3151 March 2023 and 315t March 2022 respeetively,
d}  Disclasure of revemue and profits or bass during the year
Particulars Far the year caded For ths Perled 23nd
31st Moreh 2023 December 2021 1o 30t Mureh
wlr
Controc| Beveinn Recognnad 6,542.20 174
Agpregzic amoen! of cast incmmed a.592.47 174
Profitf Loss} recognised dunng the period far ewcharge af consimiclion szrvice for a fmabcial asse| {057 -
Menmunt of advance recefved o Clisse = -
Announg of rabemtoos by Chers - -
Lo amukenl dus fram Clisnl for Cantrast Was 734351 1.74
4 Leasis
a)y  Compsny asa Lesses
The Comnprry hais e Ieasing arrangement which are pon-coiscellable m natune. Accantingly, nerght of we ssccty and lease Habilitics have been eeogaised by the Company.
The Compony has taken DTz on lease with lease torms of' 12 months o less The Compaayapplics the “shon-term lease” meopnition cxcmpiions forsuch leases.
The fiollowing aee the amounts recogrised in Stobement of profit and losy
Purtleslare Far the yeor ended Forthe Perdod 23rd
st Marcch 2023 Decomber 2021 4o 3121 March
022
Expense relaing walwen-term leases {Refer Moe 20 301 050
B} Cumpony asa Lessor

Company hos no feating omngpament nsa lesar.
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{4l amcents in bndian Repoes Lakhs unlboss wiberysse stated)

35 Detnils of d il payment to Micro and Smmall Enterprises o defiocd nnder the MSME D Act, 20006

k)

SN [ orticulo s s at 31 varch 2023 As at 31 March 2022

a) [ The pomcipsl amomt and the aserest due thereon resaming, wopaid 10 aey supplier as a5 the end ol cach scoounting

ae:
y:mu:wnl nmeurt doe o micoo and 2ma’l enlierpriscy ML MIL
Imigrest due on bgve MIL MIL
B} [The amaunt of irderest pokd by the huyer in terma of Section 16 af the MSMED Aci 2006 obang with the smoonts of HIL HIL
the papinent made 10 the sapplicr beyond Lhe appalnied day dusing coch accoomling pear
el NIL NIL

| The smoust of ireras! dus and payabile le e perod of delay i makiag payvient (which have beed pakd but beyind
the appaired day during the year) e withiot adding the intores specificd under the MEMED Act 206
di | The amount of inferest aconied and reonining wanaid at the end ef sach sccouming year HIL NIL

e} [The amuount of Furilar inserest seensining dur ind payahlz even in the sscoceding yearm, uriil mich dnts when the NIL HNIL
imtire e o ahove ore asinally paid to tho small emlerpriso for the purpads af il Bwaner 23 o doducisbie
|enpenditune usder Fection 23 of the MIMED Act MG

Curporite Sochil Regensiblity
The Company |5 nos covered under seedon 133 of the Companies Aer;, 2013 and no TR expondiiuee hios boon incurred during te nancil year ending 310 Macely 2023 and 3 st
Dorch 2012,

Dischosure pursiont (o seciion 156 of e Compnnies Act 20013:
There aro ra loans given, mvasimenls modo and guarmntce gren by the Company diring the yoar endang 3151 Marsh 2023 oad 318 bansh 2623

Addithmral Regubatery informalion;
Thee MCA vide mitification daied 2ith Mareh 202 | has prsended Schedule 1 i the Comptnica Agt, 2013 n respect of cemnin dselasures which are applicahle fine |52 Jq:ri el
The Campany has meemporsicd e elianges a8 per the waid amesdmen (s e finaacial staneiments aod below disslosuns ame mnde n piiance of the sanl

{iy  The Companyhas i wanselioes with coarpanbes sunick off undes seedon 248 o whe Cosnpandes Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the fnaneial yeur
erufing 315 March 2022 and 315 March 2022

(ily The Companyhasnat traded or mvested in Crypta Cureeney or Vinual Curreacy during the finamcial year endimg 3151 March 2023 uad 3 Bare 2022

i) The Compnaydonad lave sy Bomam property s on sl Manch 2025 and 316 March 2022 whem any progeedimg bas been inltinied or pending against e Compamy fisr

Teulding sy Bemomi gropermy.
{ivh The Company da gt have any proos perod errors in fmancial year cod ing om 30t Morch 2023 and 3 1= March 2022 g0 be disclosed sparately i Siaement of chonges @ equity.

¥} The Campaiy hae ug cxes of any elanpes or smisThetion which ls yol 1o be replogred with ROC bayond the stansery peried tn the Gnancia] yeor ending 3 1et March 2023 and
Blat March 2022

tvih  Durmg the financial year 20X2-23 and FO21-21, thee Conapamy bave notadvamced or lnaned or investad st any other person( =) or encinties), mclading fonelm mites
{1 dinrres) wilh the und ing hat he | dingy shelt
{ap  dires iy o indirecily Land er Lnvest ia dibier persons o valitey Wentiflod inany nsansei whatsoover by o oo bediall of the

comgany {Ultimne Bemeficiaries) or

b provide cny puorasiee, securkty o e ke 1o oor oo bedulf of de Ulinaoe oo beindes

{wii) Drurmg the fmancial year 2022-23 and 202 1-22, the Company kave not rece ived amy fumd from any persen|s) or suritg jes), meluding forvign entithes | Fusding Parry) wimi tiss
ienleritanding (wiether recondod 0 wnling or othorwise] that the Campany stall:
() ifirectly or indiceetly leml oe invess o othes persond or cotities dewtified moany manner whatsoever by or oo beholfof the

Fundlmg Masty (L ltinuie Benedicianes) or

by provide nny punnimize, soeurity or the bke on beballof the Ulimaic Beneficihiries,

[wii) The Campan yhas nat granted any loans and sdvances in e nature of lpans to promoters, direcsons, KMP and othier related parties in the finong ol year onshag 305t W arch 2023
aid 35t bharch 2022 excep e mobiliostion ddvance of Ry 5,000000 kikbs olven lo FY 2.2,

(e] The Company dess not bive any immovable properties os gt 31st March 2023 ond 376t Moreh 2022

(x) The Company basnet been declaned as wilfisl defabier by any bank or linanelal insiimlion or govemment or any govemment nulherity in the financial year 202237 ond 2021 =
kN

fuf) Coumpany ls not reguared 10 submit stasement of current agsees wiily the bank and therefore reooneilnion of the Filed by thes pany with bhank and the haoles of
aezounss ie mo: applienble.

k. The Company des ot buve any inpsaciians in fnancial year 1022-23 and 203 1-22, whers die gonspany [us not used the bomow iogs freen badis und finenc il nsiuioes for
il speeilfic purpes: for which it wiia ek o the baknee sheat dos.

{uili) T Cosupuny lsve not cncred into any schevnd(sh ol amngements duriing te wear onding 302 Mareh 2023 and pedod cading 3150 March 2022,

{xi¥) The Company sz ned ansored (a ey nnsselien aed resorded in (e books ol sceeurts thal hag botr smrendered or diseloand a2 dseoma dadng e eur 2022-13 and 202122 in
the tox nnscawments wnder fhe Income Tax Awd, 196 {such 2 search ar survey or any oflier relevant provdsions of the Ioeons: Tax Act, 1961,

{x¥) Company has not reeeived uny granss end doantions during the year ending 516 Morch 2023 and posiod ending 35st Mapeh 2021
(i} The Coempamy decs ot bave any Capfial Work- ln- Progeoss aa at 3 1= Mosch, 2023 ond 384t March, 2022, 5o, agelng of Copiral Wark- in- Progress i2 not applicable

fl's‘ilh The Ctrnpinjh'_s mr_|nvr-1yhmuu£nl Pm]zﬂ_'rm at st M.n:ﬁ,llm aral T lst Mal:lx, 2132, sa fawr walsstinnool invesdient propesiy i not applicble

(i) The Conpany dees pot have sy Tnsngible Assets and Tnanghle Assets undsr Developreent as 3t 3 s Murch, 2023 and 3 Lst March, 2033

fumx) The Compuey [ollews essl model fr secogmilion of Presery, plast uad squipment anil ascordirgly, has aot revalued any ol Prepedyplund and syuipoosi dunng ibe 1Y
1022-23 and 1= FY 2021-22, the Comnpany docs nat have any Mroporiyplast and cquipment,

{xx) The provigions of eluuge (27) of secton 2ol 1he Act read with the Companses (Reswictivn on nurober of lapers) Rules, 2017 aré ot oppliceble on the sompany.
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(Al amcunts m Indian Riipeos Lakhs unless othierwise stated]

[xxi) The following sccounting ratios are disclosed.

Investments (Finaice
Tncome)

3.M0 [Pariculars Musmseraior Denominacsr | March 31, 2023 | Margh 31, 2022 Y change Reason for change more dian
25%%
&) |Cuorreni rabs (1o izmes) Curpenil Assels Curent Liabilities 242 144 95.83% The Comprury was incorposatee
on 23rd Dacember, 2021 and
: eommenced it5 canstruction
b] | Prebe-equity vatio {is timies] Tonal Pebi Shareholder's 0,59 = 10000 activities in thi later halfof the
Equiry eurrent year izpon declaration of
appaiated dute by NHAT Tlha
g)  |Deobcsorvice coverogo ratio (in Eamings for delt Delit serviea = 16,73 100.00% variotkon in fnaeial rotios is
times) mervice = Mot profic afier| Interestd: Lense prienarily due 10 the mifial
laxes + Mon-cash Paymumnis + =takulismig phase of the
opdraling expensest Frincipal (Compuny
Inerest Bepaymeris
4] |Retum on cquity ratis {in %) Mt Profits after laocs - Average [ Fed] =131 19234
Prefevence [hvidend Sharcholder’s
Equtty
g} |Inventory turnaver ratiocfin limes) | Cost ofgosds sold | Averane Inveniory 4 M
Y |[Trade recenvables turnover rafs Revemue from Averape Trude 125 - 100 00y
(i imes] Operations Receivnhle
gl |Trde payable fmaver rotio (in Mt eredit purchases = Average Trade - - A
tirnes} s eredit purchases = Paynbles
puschase refunt
W) et cagined Lmover metio (m PFavenue from Waorking capieal = o7e Q.67 LT:81%
rmes) Ohpesanions Current pascds =
Current liabildis
i} |Met profit ratia {in %) Nl Profis Revenue {rom 048, 33 11754%
Operations
1 R on eapinnl employed (in %) | Eamings before interost [ Copital Enxployed = Q.03 - 10000
and T Tangible Met Waorth)
=+ Toial Db+
Daferred Tax
Lizhility
By [Retun on tovesiment (i Ya) Income gensrated fram Irvestment = - N.A.
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3a

40

41

Covid -19 Disclosure

Thie Company hns eonudered the pesibbe effeets that may result from Covid-19 in the peeparat ion of fta financial results ncluding the rezoverabi ity of camying snseuntz of finonal
aund non-finoncial sssets. In develboping e aswnpions relating to the possilde futurs uncartaintics in the global sconomic cond tiens bocaise ol Cownd-13, the Comgany has used
imternal and cogormnd sporees of information ond expacts hat the earrying amount of the-nemts wall be eeovared

The actual snpazt of thes global liealll pandemic may be differont from that which bas boen setimnbed, as ihe Covid- 19 siuntion evalves in Lndia sod globally. However, the Coarm pimy
will continue to closely monitar any msternl changes w future ssenorsle condilons.

Receni pronouncement
Ministry of Comparate AiTaies (" MOA™) notifies new sianderds or amendmenia 1o the existing standards under Companses (ndian Accounimg Standards) Rubes as sssued fram iime by
time om March 31,3023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accowiting Standards) Amendment Rules 2023 as helow:

Ind AS 1- Presen tmon of Finnnciol Stotements - This smendmernt requires the entities 1o diselos2 their moterial acoourting pelicies racher thom thelr significont accounting policies,
The effeciive dale for adoption of Lis emend menl is'an arnoal perseds begi sing on or afier April |, 2023 The Company has evaluated the nmendment and the impoct of the
amendrment is insignifeant in the financisl sttements,

Ind AS 8- Accounting Policles, Chianges I Acceunfing Estiniates amd Evror - This amendment bas meroduced 2 defiotwn of ‘accountmg “and mchided I e
Ind AS & in help entities di dinguish changea in accounting policies. from chianges in nccrunting estimaies, The effectrve date for adoption of this armendment is aonunl perisds
beginning an or afiey Agnil |, 2023 The Cosnpany kas evaluzted the amendment and ihere is no impoct om its finmesl sintements,

Iod AS 12 .« Jucome Taxes = This amendment hay marrowed fe scope of the imbial recognition sxemplion so kil i does nal apply bo irnassctons tist give rse to equnl and offs=ting
temporary differences. The effective dote far sdoption of this smendment is snnual perfods beginning on ot afler Apeil], 2023 The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is
ner et on 11 finaneal slalement

Cther diselnsnres

() Thevompasy s incoipacaied or 23nd Deember 2001 a2 wholly owed subsidiary of Ircon Infemnational Limited

{it)  lrcan Akleli-Siirsad Expresswny Lirrdled (lreoa ASEL) has entered 1y e senvice eonczssion amangement on 27k January 2022 with Mational Highway outhonty of Indin
(IHAL in tenns of which NHAT (Auhority) has suthonsed the company to earry the business of Construgtion of Eight Lave socess contralled Expressway from Km 3.000 io
Em 20,200 {design Jenpth 172040 em) feom Shirsad 1o Akbadi Section SPUR of Vadodora Murbai Expressway(bereinafter called the *Vadodnra Mumbai Expeesawmedin the
State of Maharadtra under Bharstmala Parmyog s (Phase [-2ackage XIV) by Eight Laming thereof {the "Progeet”) on Hybrid Annwity basis, wineh sholl be partly finsnced by the:
concessiondite who shall recaver s investment and eosts trrough poyment 1o be smade by (heauthornity, in aecordonce with the lerms onld eorditions sot in e concesion
ngreement.

TreanASEL has swarded the above metloned wark to Incen Interaational Limited at & fixed cost of Ba 106023 eoce plus G5T on EPC Cenact basis:

The company has entered into loon agresment for Rs. 686,37 Croee o finomee the afcresaid praject from Bank of Basoda on 26,08 2032 and Appoinied date has heen noted by
MHAL on 10011 2022 The Company has reedived the disbursement of kaan of Bs, 3070 Crare i the fimancial year 2022-13.

(uii)  Thens 14 ne change in the authorised and issoed share eapital of the Company duringg the year. However, he Promater Company, (reon [ntemational Linvted in jte 285th Board
Mcesing held on 6th Apal, 2023, has ppproved the madsfiestion of capital sinucture of the Campany to fncrease the equity capital contribution by Ra 1711 extre and reduce the
Quesi-Equity (Inierist Free Loand with equivalen! amownt 25 per Lender Banks™s Sanctioned 1erm, Thus, thiere witl be no addivional fnanciol snplication on Bramater Compans.
Aczondingly, the company will take nesessary action o increase the quthorised share capital to enable the company te inerease its paid ap shars cagrital 23 per Lender Banks s
Sanctioned term

(iv) The Company hag a sp=tern of oblaining periodic sonfirmaton of balanees from barks and otlier punies,

(v} In the ommon of the manzpement, the value of ass=ts on realisanon inthe ordmacy covrse of business, will nol be less thn the values at whoch these are gaied mothe Balance
Shal.

[v) Figures rounded off 1o the nearest rupzes n Lakh.

rand on belall of ihe Board of Direciors

. B

(Ihrectork [Diractar)
553) (DIN-D85 17013)

A per our repart of even daie abtached
For Rajenden K Gosl & Ca,

)
Chariered 1o

!
én-:c

Place | New Delhi
Date = bay 12, 2023
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON AKLOLI-SHIRSAD EXPRESSWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framewark
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with
the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditer General of India, have decided not to
conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Akloli-Shirsad Expressway
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Ni Goswami
Dated:_gml .07.2023 Director Genergl of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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